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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

A frame building of classical Temple-like styling, this 1844 church "displays
an Italianate treatment of Greek Revival combined with Gothic Revival ele-
ments,"l with pointed windows and front door. Exterior walls are covered
with 9" wide planks which are tooled to simulate rusticated stone. Windows
are wood-muntined and covered by louvered shutters. The cornices are boxed
and denticulated, with a Greek-fret frieze under the sides and the returns
at the ends. The raking cornices, however, do not have the frieze but are
subtended by a deeply scalloped architrave or taenia. At the four corners
of the building, pilasters of the Doric order support the entablature. The
pilasters are modified by recessed vertical panels that come to points
immediately below the capitals. There are no front windows. Sides are
divided into four bays and the rears lean-to into three.

At the rear of the building is a small lean-to that houses the sacristy and,
on either side, a small ante-room. In the corner at the right the ante-room
contains a small confessional.

The bell tower is inset, open, and square. Its structure follows that of

the church exterior, with the plank-sided base tooled and with square columns
supporting the entablature. The roof of the bell tower is hipped but nearly
flat.

The foundation is of a greyish-buff limestone laid random ashlar, and there
is a small basement in which school was held at one time.

The church was built in 1844, has never been painted, and has weathered to
the solid grey color of long-exposed wood. In about 1961-63, members of the
Knights of Columbus of four nearby counties undertook restoration of the
church, rebuilding the badly deteriorated foundation and replacing those
parts of the bell tower which were no longer strong enough to support the
bell. The bell had been removed and stored for some time before the restora-
tion but has since been replaced in the tower. Restoration was completely
faithful, with minimal replacement of deteriorated wood. Beams and floor
joists were found to be strong and in good enough condition to continue to
support the floor. No alteration of the building has ever occurred. More
thorough restoration, especially of detailed parts like the Greek-fret
frieze, the louvered window shutters, etc., is needed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of St. Augustine Church is architectural. Its architect
was a Dominican priest-missionary, Father Samuel C. Mazzuchelli, an amazing-
ly accomplished architect-builder who designed and erected at least twenty
and possibly as many as twenty-five churches in the upper Mississippi valley
mostly in the lead-mining areas of southwestern Wisconsin, northwestern
Illinois and northeastern Iowa, although he is credited with having built
one church in Green Bay. A number of his churches still stand and are in
active use, but most have been altered to accommodate needs of larger con-
gregations. St. Augustine Church, out of active use for nearly a century,
is the only known Mazzuchelli church which has undergone no alteration.

Father Mazzuchelli was born in Milan in 1806, was educated and became a
Dominican in Italy, and came to the United States at twenty-two. So far as
is known he had no architectural training, but for an amateur he has left

a heritage of architecture that would do justice to a highly accomplished
professional. Perrin describes Father Mazzuchelli's St. Augustine Church
at New Diggings as '"Perhaps the most curious of the Greek and Gothic
Revival combinations [in the state]," and says further, "This building...is
one of the genuine architectural gems in the state of Wiscomsin...an impor=
tant element of Wisconmsin's cultural legacy. The preservation of this
building should be regarded as a public responsibility."l

Now partially restored, preserved and maintained by the Knights of Columbus,
St. Augustine Church is open to the public on Sunday afternoomns in the
summertime, and on infrequent but appropriate occasions, usually related

to events in Father Muzzuchelli's life, Mass is still celebrated there.

1. Perrin, Historic Wisconsin Buildings, 36.
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